
 

BCP Council Civic Centre, Bourne Avenue, Bournemouth BH2 6DY 

 

 
 

 

Notice of Lower Central Gardens Trust Board 
 

Date: Friday, 29 April 2022 at 10.00 am 

Venue: Committee Suite, Civic Centre, Poole BH15 2RU 

 

Membership: 

Chairman: 

Cllr L Williams 

Vice Chairman: 
Cllr S Bull 

Cllr S Bartlett 
Cllr M Greene 
 

Cllr A Hadley 
Mr R Boon 
 

  
 

 

All Members of the Lower Central Gardens Trust Board are summoned to attend this 
meeting to consider the items of business set out on the agenda below. 

 
The press and public are welcome to view the live stream of this meeting at the following 
link: 

 
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5318 

 
If you would like any further information on the items to be considered at the meeting please 
contact: Nicky Hooley or email 01202 128737 

 
Press enquiries should be directed to the Press Office: Tel: 01202 454668 or 

email press.office@bcpcouncil.gov.uk 
  
This notice and all the papers mentioned within it are available at democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk 

 

A
v
a
ila

b
le

 o
n
lin

e
 a

n
d
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 M

o
d
.g

o
v
 a

p
p
 

 

 

 

 
 

GRAHAM FARRANT 

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

 

 
21 April 2022 
 



 

 susan.zeiss@bcpcouncil.gov.uk 

 



 

 

AGENDA 
Items to be considered while the meeting is open to the public 

1.   Apologies  

 To receive any apologies for absence from members of the Trust Board. 

 

 

2.   Declarations of Interests  

 Councillors are requested to declare any interests on items included in this 
agenda. Please refer to the workflow on the preceding page for guidance. 

Declarations received will be reported at the meeting. 
 

 

3.   Confirmation of Minutes 1 - 4 

 To confirm and sign as a correct record the minutes of the meetings held on 

20 December 2021 and 12 January 2022.  
 

 

4.   Summary of accounts March 2020 - March 2022 5 - 8 

 This report is to comply with the requirement for financial monitoring to be 
included at each Trust meeting. This report is for information only to show 

the draft financial position of the Trust as at year-end March 2022 with the 
years-ended March 2020 & 2021 added for comparative purposes. 

 

 

5.   Lower Central Gardens Trust - Update Report 9 - 38 

 The report provides historical governance arrangements and a range 
service update information to the Lower Gardens Trust Board on specific 

items as requested by the Board of Trustees. 

Items covered include: 

 Governance 

 Operational service updates 

 Trading 

 Events & projects 
 

The report provides information to note whilst also seeking support and 
approval from the board to increase on site CCTV, a one-year extension to 
a concession. The report furthermore asks the board to give consideration 

as to topic items for future reports. 
 

 

6.   Work Programme 39 - 40 

 To note, discuss and agree items of business for the Trust Board to 

consider at future meetings.  Also, to agree dates of future meetings. 
 

 

 
No other items of business can be considered unless the Chairman dec ides the matter is urgent for reasons that 
must be specified and recorded in the Minutes.  

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

LOWER CENTRAL GARDENS TRUST BOARD 

 
MONDAY, 20TH DECEMBER, 2021 

 
 
Present:  
 

Councillor Lawrence Williams in the Chair 

 Councillors Cllr S Bull (Vice-Chairman) and 
Cllr S Bartlett 

Mr R Boon – external member of the Board 

Also in Attendance: 

 Councillor M Greene (online, non-voting) 
 

 
 

 
1 Election of Chairman  

 
Councillor Williams was elected Chairman of the Lower Central Gardens Trust Board, until 

the first meeting of the 2022/23 municipal year. 
Voting: unanimous 
 

2 Election of Vice Chairman  

 
Councillor Bull was elected Vice Chairman of the Lower Central Gardens Trust Board, until the 
first meeting of the 2022/23 municipal year. 
Voting: unanimous 
 

3 Apologies  

 
Apologies for absence had been received from Councillor M Greene.   
 

4 Declarations of Interests  

 
Councillor Bartlett declared an interest as a Director of BH Live and BH Live Enterprises but 
fully took part in the meeting.   
 

5 Forward Plan  

 
The Board discussed items of business relating to the Lower Central Gardens Trust, which 
they would like to feature on a forward plan.  It was agreed that the following items would be 
included: 

 Update on who has maintenance responsibility for the Lower Central Gardens toilets. 

 A progress report on the café and eating establishments situated in the Lower Central 
Gardens.  

 An update on the Aviary, including governance arrangements. 

 An explanation of the remit of the Trust Board, including a map of the area defined as 
the ‘Lower Central Gardens’; how the gardens have operated in the meantime and 
looking forward for future sustainable use of the gardens. 

 The following standard items would be included on each Agenda: parks update; events 
updates; and financial monitoring.   

 There would be an annual item regarding the approval of the accounts – this would 
need to be timetabled.   

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Monday, 20th December, 2021  

 

It was RESOLVED that a forward plan be maintained for the Trust Board, which would 
be included on each Agenda and would commence with the items as detailed above. 

Voting: unanimous 

 

6 Membership of the Board  
 
The Board noted the changes to the membership of the Board including the reappointment of 
Mr Roger Boon and the retirement of Mr Bernard Uzzell, who had served his two successive 
three-year terms.  The Board acknowledged the work Mr Uzzell had done on behalf of the 
Board.   

It was advised that there were currently two vacancies of the external membership, which 
would need to be advertised for suitable candidates to apply for, by the Service.  However, as 
a Council wide review of the governance of Trust Boards was to be carried out in the new 
year, any recruitment would be delayed until the timetable of the review was known.  An 
update would be given at the next meeting, following the one to be held in January.   

 
7 Future Meeting Dates  

 
It was suggested that meeting be held in January 2022 and then a further one later in the 
year, if it was felt it was needed.   

The Company Accountant confirmed that the annual accounts and audit plan were expected 
to be received by 11 January 2022, so a meeting towards the end of week commencing 10 
January would be appropriate for the purposes of the signing-off of the accounts.  The 
Company Accountant would liaise with Democratic Services regarding the meeting date.   

It was agreed that items for the next meeting, in addition to the accounts, would include 
updates on the general state of the gardens and aviary, whilst an update on the Winter 
Wonderland 2021, would be presented to the following meeting.   

It was RESOLVED that a meeting would be held in January 2022, which include an item 
to consider the annual accounts. 

Voting: Nem.con   

 
 

 
Duration of the meeting: 2.00  - 2.20 pm  

 
 

Chairman at the meeting on 
Monday, 20 December 2021 

Page 2



 

 

LOWER CENTRAL GARDENS TRUST BOARD 

 
WEDNESDAY, 12TH JANUARY, 2022 

 
 
Present:  
 

Councillor L Williams - Chairman 

 Councillors Cllr S Bull, Cllr S Bartlett and Cllr A Hadley 

 
 
 
 

8 Apologies  
 
Apologies for absence had been received from Cllr Mike Greene and Mr Roger Boon. 

 
9 Declarations of Interests  

 
Councillor Bartlett made a declaration of interest, in his role as a Director of BH Live and BH 
Enterprises Ltd.   

 
10 Exclusion of Press and Public  

 
RESOLVED that under Section 100 (A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 
be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 in 
Part I of Schedule 12A of the Act and that the public interest in withholding the 
information outweighs such interest in disclosing the information. 

 
11 Financial Statements 2020/21  

 
Exempt Report as defined in Paragraph 3 in Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972. 

The Finance Manager presented a report, a copy of which had been circulated to each 
Member and a copy of which appears as Appendix 'A' to these Minutes in the Minute Book. 

The Board was advised that it is a statutory requirement to agree the annual financial 
statements for the Lower Central Gardens and submit to the Charity Commission by 31 
January each year. The Board were asked to review and agree the accounts prior to them 
being signed off by the Leader and Portfolio Holder for Finance and Transformation. 

Gareth Norris, the audit Director from Grant Thornton confirmed that the audit process had 
gone well and there were no significant findings.  The Audit Plan had been circulated and the 
Leader had received this in advance of signing.  It was confirmed that a Management letter of 
representation would also be supplied.   

RESOLVED that the Board agree the accounts for the financial year 2020/21. 

Voting: Unanimous 

 

 
 
Duration of the meeting: 4.00 - 4.25 pm  

 
 

Chairman at the meeting on 
Wednesday, 12 January 2022 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



LOWER CENTRAL GARDENS TRUST BOARD 

 

Report subject  Summary of accounts March 2020 - March 2022 

Meeting date  29 April 2022 

Status  Public Report   

Executive summary   This report is to comply with the requirement for financial 
monitoring to be included at each Trust meeting. This report 
is for information only to show the draft financial position of 
the Trust as at year-end March 2022 with the years-ended 
March 2020 & 2021 added for comparative purposes. 

Recommendations It is TO NOTE that:  

 This report is for information only to show the draft financial 
position of the Trust as at year-end March 2022 with the years-
ended March 2020 & 2021 added for comparative purposes. 

Reason for 
recommendations 

This is for update only on the draft financial position of the Trust as 
at year-end March 2022. 

  

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



Portfolio Holder(s):  Councillor Mike Greene  

Corporate Director  Kate Langdown 

Report Authors Stephen White 

Wards  Bournemouth Central;  

Classification  For Information 
Ti t l e:   

Background 

1. This is one of the standard items to be included on each Agenda: financial 
monitoring.   

Options Appraisal 

2. Not applicable. 

Summary of financial implications 

3. Not applicable. 

Summary of legal implications 

4. Not applicable. 

Summary of human resources implications 

5. Not applicable. 

Summary of sustainability impact 

6. Not applicable. 

Summary of public health implications 

7. Not applicable. 

Summary of equality implications 

8. There is no EIA or EIA conversation record as this report is for information only. 

Summary of risk assessment 

9. Not applicable.  

Background papers 

Not applicable. 

Appendices   

Appendix 1  

Page 6



Mar-20 * Mar-21 * Mar-22 **

Income from Commercial trading operations 559.2    200.7 565.6    

Recreational activity income 219.0    129.8 230.7    

Total Income 778.2    330.4 796.4    

Commercial trading operations (127.3) (111.4) (152.2)

Charitable activities (973.6) (471.3) (947.4)

Maintenance of Pavilion (129.6) (129.0) (94.3)

Total Expenditure (1,230.5) (711.7) (1,193.9)

BCP Subsidy 452.4    381.3 397.6    

Notes

* March 2020 & 2021 audited accounts.

** March 2022 are estimates only as the year-end accounts have yet to be finalised.

Lower Central Gardens Trust

Summary of accounts March 2020 - March 2022
£'k

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



LOWER CENTRAL GARDENS TRUST BOARD 

 

Report subject  Lower Central Gardens Trust - Update Report 

Meeting date  29 April 2022 

Status  Public Report   

Executive summary  The report provides historical governance arrangements and a range 
service update information to the Lower Gardens Trust Board on 
specific items as requested by the Board of Trustees. 

Items covered include: 

 Governance 
 Operational service updates 

 Trading 

 Events & projects 
 

The report provides information to note whilst also seeking support 
and approval from the board to increase on site CCTV, a one-year 
extension to a concession. The report furthermore asks the board to 
give consideration as to topic items for future reports.  

Recommendations It is recommended that: 

 

a) The trustees support and approve the following:  
I. the erection of two further CCTV columns and cameras 

on the path immediately behind the bandstand on the 
path known historically as Pinewalk.  

II. a one year extension to the Westover Kiosk tender and 
for its re-tendering to be carried out in 2023.  

III. reaffirming a delegation of day-to-day and business as 
usual activities to the relevant directorates namely 
Director of Environment and Director of Destination & 
Culture within the council with Environment Services 
taking the lead role. Any major changes or new 
activities are to be referred to the trust board.  
 

      b) That the trustees indicate which matters they require to be on 

 the Forward Plan for the Lower Central Gardens Trust and the 
 scope of any formal report from BCP Council officers. 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



 

  

Reason for 
recommendations 

To inform the trustees of the historical governance arrangements, 
general management and development activities of the gardens. 

To increase safety within the park via enhanced CCTV provision. 

To allow the smooth running of the gardens and for time sensitive 
matters to be dealt with by officers. 

 

  

Page 10



Portfolio Holder(s):  Councillor Mark Anderson Portfolio Holder for Environment & Place  

Corporate Director  Jess Gibbons – Chief Operating Officer 

Report Authors Ian Poultney – Head of Strategic Development 

Andy McDonald – Head of Parks and Bereavement 

Kate Langdown – Director of Environment 

Wards  Not applicable  

Classification  For Decision, Update and Information 
Ti t l e:   

Background 

1. This report has been prepared to provide the Lower Central Gardens Trust  (LCGT) 
with background information as to the established governance of the trust, and to 
provide a range of council service updates relating to the land and assets held within 
the trust. 

Trust Governance 

2. The following is provided for reference in relation to the historical establishment and 
governance of the Lower Central Gardens Trust: 

a) Lower Central Gardens Trust Scheme Governance 

Appendix 1 provides a copy of the registered scheme that governs the charity known 

as Central Lower Gardens Bournemouth 
b) Rules of the Trust 

Appendix 2 provides a copy of the Rules of the Trust  
c) Conflicts of Interest Policy 

Appendix 3 provides a copy of the Trusts Conflict of Interest Policy 

d) Map of Lower Central Gardens Trust 
Appendix 4 Trust Land Ownership 

Delegation of authority 

3. There has been some uncertainty recently as to the level of authority the Lower 
Central Gardens Trust (LCGT) delegates its duties to the relevant council 
directorates.  Historically the LCGT would delegate day to day and business as 
usual decisions and activities such as operational matters to the relevant 
directorates with Environment Services taking the lead on the majority of these 
decisions and the council events team allowed to authorise smaller activities within 
the trust land.  This was to allow the smooth running of the gardens and allowed for 
time sensitive matters to be dealt with. 

4. Any activity that had a long-term impact, a major change from the norm or was ‘new’ 
to the gardens was to be referred back to the LCGT board for approval.  It would 
assist the internal decision making if this delegated authority could be reaffirmed as 
we move forward with further decisions on the operation and activities within the 
gardens. 

Page 11



5. The LCGT board is asked to consider reaffirming the delegation of day to day and 
business as usual activities to the relevant directorates within the council with 
Environment Services taking the lead role.  Any major changes or new activities are 
to be referred to the LCGT board.   

Grounds Maintenance & Cleansing Updates 

2022/23 season 

6. All scheduled grounds maintenance winter works have now been undertaken and 
progressed as planned. 

7. A sight lines audit has been undertaken in conjunction with the police to reduce  anti 
social behaviour (ASB) risks in response to several incidents that have occurred in 
and around the park over the last 12 months.   

8. The grass cutting programme for the season has commenced and will deliver the 
same outcomes as in previous years. 

9. Additional litter bins have been provided and emptying has commenced in the 
evening on Friday, Saturday and Sunday, in order to meet expanding demand and 
in an attempt to address any overflow issues as part of the council’s planned 
summer response programme. 

10. Bedding planting will take the form of previous years so that the gardens maintain 
their expected splendour.  It is intended that the service will plant a number of large 
shrubs over the next few years to fill in some of the shrub border gaps to further 
enhance the gardens. 

Ice rink reinstatement 

11. The site utilised for the for the christmas tree and ice rink attractions has now been 
reseeded (including around benches) and all appear to be germinating well. An 
effective reinstatement is expected as a result. The main panel of the ice rink was 
reseeded using tractor mounted equipment on the 30th of March 2022, to make use 
of optimum ground conditions.  

12. The site will be watered and managed now throughout the summer to ensure the 
best recovery as possible is achieved. All works relating to these events are to be 
recharged to the events code.  

Anti Social Behaviour 

Night-time economy impacts 

13. Broken glass is regularly being found in the gardens especially following the 
weekends which is causing additional work for the grounds staff, who continue to do 
their best to ensure the park is safe for use as early as possible each morning. The 
Police are aware of this issue, with drinkers and suspected ASB focusing on the 
bench by chestnut bank.  

14. This position is being regularly monitored by the Police, Community Support 
Accredited Scheme Officers (CSAS), grounds staff and Youth Services will be 
working in the gardens on Fridays, Saturdays and Sundays throughout the summer 
season as part of the council’s Summer Response to link with young adults and 
attempt to encourage a more responsible use of the gardens at night.   

Page 12



Installation of additional CCTV cameras 

15. Through the council’s Cleaner, Greener, Safer priority programme additional funding 
has been secured to erect two additional CCTV cameras in Pinewalk (the path 
immediately to the rear of the bandstand).  This area has seen an increase in ASB 
and criminal activity over the years as it is currently shielded from other cameras in 
the wider location by trees.  The addition of these two cameras has been at the 
request of the council’s CCTV manager and our partner agencies and would be 
managed as part of the BCP Councils overall CCTV network.  It would require the 
erection or replacement of existing light columns to accommodate the cameras and 
would provide better CCTV coverage in this area.  

16. The LCGT board is asked to support this investment decision for the erection of two 
further CCTV columns and cameras on the path immediately behind the bandstand 
on the path known historically as Pinewalk.  

2022/23 Events Programme 

17. There will be a return to the pre pandemic schedule of events this year with most of 
the familiar events once again taking place in the park. There will also be a return of 
the “Big Screen” in the gardens as part of the planned Jubilee celebrations.  

18. A request was received to extend the use of the ice rink project in order to 
accommodate an Octoberfest event, this was however declined by officers due to 
the prolonged impact on the gardens and that achieving a full recovery of the 
grassed areas would not be possible in time to meet the expectations of the summer 
programme.  

19. There will be as part of the Arts by the Sea 1st -3rd October 2022 a mix of art 
installations and live performances taking place in the gardens.  

20. A list of current confirmed events is provided in Appendix 5 

Trading  

Westover Kiosk – Picnic Park Deli 

21. The original lease for the kiosk is due to expire in November 2022.  Following 
discussions with procurement officers, it has been recommended that an offer of a 
further one-year extension to the current leaseholder is undertaken. The current 
leaseholder has operated the site well and has increased footfall in the area, 
engaging with the local community to provide additional facilities, resulting in a 
reduction in anti-social behaviour and has not caused any concerns to the council. 

22. By offering an additional year it would enable enough time to be set aside for a full 
and proper tender operation.  It is felt that to achieve best value, the future tender is 
likely to be for a longer period of up to 10 years but with landlord instigated breaks at 
years 5, 7 and 9.  The tender would be offered on the open market as before. 

23. The LCGT board is asked to note this recommendation and support the extension to 
Westover Kiosk and for its re-tendering to be carried out in 2023.   

Hedgehog Kiosk  

24. The first kiosk from The Square, continues to be operated in-house by Environment 
Services. The kiosk offers a range of snack, food and general refreshments, it has a 
mix of regular customers as well as passing trade.   

Page 13



25. The pandemic has clearly had an effect on income over the past 18 months there 
are however very encouraging signs that things are now getting back to pre-
pandemic levels in most cases.  

26. There have been some minor issues affecting trading resilience such as wi-fi  
connection issues affecting card payments, but these are now in hand. 

Street Food Corner 

27. Street Food Corner (SFC) had suffered with reduced income and trader uncertainty 
during 2020 and 2021.  Clearly in 2020 with restrictions and ongoing uncertainty 
traders were reluctant to commit with unknown future lock downs.  However, in 2021 
trade started to pick up from bookings even though there was a slow start to the 
year. 

28. Predictions based on current bookings for 2022, have income back up to, and 
slightly above pre pandemic levels.  Bookings and monitoring continue to be carried 
out by the service.  Traders are asked for details of menus, stands, food hygiene 
certification and must accept that unless very exceptional circumstances, we do not 
offer refunds if they are booked on a day with poor weather. That is the nature of 
street food trading. 

29. Environment Services continue to manage the SFC site with varying menu options 
over the months.  Due to the volume of licences and side letters for additional dates 
that are issued, these are still signed off by the Parks Contract Manager under 
historical delegated authority. 

Lower Gardens Mini Golf 

30. This continues to be run by Environment Services.  As with most activities income 
was variable over the last two years, however it is starting to show early signs of 
improving over the 2022/23 trading year.  Over the last year or so joint offers with 
Hedgehog Kiosk have been offered and these have proved to be popular.  The mini 
golf kiosk also offers a limited snack offer, this being re-stocked from Hedgehog 
Kiosk. 

31. Some minor works have been carried out on site where repairs have been identified 
but it is15 years since its last major refurbishment was undertaken and so 
consideration for next refurbishment will need to be modelled and costed. 

Westover Art and Markers Market (Pinewalk Market) 

32. Like Street Food Corner, this site has experienced a large downturn over the last 
two years due to uncertainties around the pandemic and as a result any 
improvement work was put on hold. Last year, a low key operation saw a much 
reduced net income. 

33. For 2022/23 some money has been found from existing budgets to carry out some 
canopy replacements and work is ongoing to improve the booking system, moving to 
an on-line arrangement which will hopefully be ‘live’ before the main summer period.  
Previously the leaseholder at Picnic Park Deli has been paid a management fee to 
assist in the daily running but as their business has improved at the beginning of the 
day, this now clashes with sorting out the artists at the start of the exhibition day.  
Environment Services are currently looking at alternative ways to oversee this 
activity in the short term. 

Page 14



34. With the already large number of projects committed across Environment Services 
and no identified budget any changes to the exhibition area have been put on hold 
at this time, hence the interim works to improve covers and other minor works.   

Public Conveniences  

35. 64 faults from wear and tear and vandalism were recorded in the last financial year 
at a cost of approximately £15k. So far £11,360 of costs have been registered by 
Facilities Management, with some costs still to be billed for 2021/22.  

36. A particular issue relating to the hand washing units (Wallgates) has been raised as 
needing some attention in the medium term as these items are no longer within a 
maintenance contract due to their age. At some point they will all need replacing.  

37. The changing places toilet continues to operate on a warden assisted basis as it has 
done since the pandemic period when it was safe to open and this is currently being 
financially supported by the Summer Response programme.  

Westover Gardens Aviary 

38. Avon Construction the main contractor has now left the site with the remainder of the 
herras fencing to be collected directly after Easter.  

39. The project is now being internally fitted out in readiness for the re-housing of the 
birds and the imminent re-opening of the attraction. A great deal of this work has 
been undertaken by grounds and countryside staff in order to keep the overall 
project costs within budget.  

40. The re-opening of the aviary is planned for May 17th 2022 at 10:00 am and 
invitations have been issued.  

Summary of financial implications 

41. There are no financial implications arising from this report. A financial report is 
provided bi-annually to the board as a separate item.  

Summary of legal implications 

42. There are no legal implications arising from this report. Any future procurement 
processes will be undertaken in accordance with appropriate council financial and 
procurement regulations. 

Summary of human resources implications 

43. There are no human resource implications arising from this report. 

Summary of sustainability impact 

44. The land continues to be managed in a way that seeks protects its future both from 
a climate and ecological emergency focus and is currently awarded Green Flag 
status. Green Flag award criteria includes Environmental Management and 
Biodiversity, landscape and heritage. 

Summary of public health implications 

45. Access to quality green space such as the Lower Central Gardens is important. It is 
clear that parks create important opportunities for social integration and health and 

Page 15



wellbeing outcomes. Lower Central Gardens positively contributes towards this 
outcome. 

Summary of equality implications 

46. There is no requirement for an EIA as part of this report.  

47. The proposed increased CCTV facility will be reviewed against existing EIA 
assessments and revised as appropriate via the relevant service lead. 

Summary of risk assessment 

48. Trading levels will continue to be monitored post pandemic to evaluate recovery. 

49. Anti social behaviour will continue to be monitored and responded to via relevant 
council services and partner agencies. 

Background papers 

50. New Charity Scheme for the Lower Central Gardens Trust Bournemouth Borough 
Council Cabinet Decision 23rd June 2010 

Appendices   

Appendix 1 -  Registered scheme that governs the charity known as Central Lower Gardens 
Bournemouth 

 
Appendix 2 - Rules of the Trust  

Appendix 3 - Trusts Conflict of Interest Policy 

Appendix 4 - Trust Land Ownership 

 

 

  

Page 16



 

 

 

Page 17



 

 

 

Page 18



 

 

 

Page 19



 

Page 20



1 
WORK\4179753\v.5  30007.1 

Appendix 2 

The Lower Central Gardens, Bournemouth 

(Registered charity No. 299739) 

Rules of the Trust Board 

adopted on the        day of                                2011 

 

1 The Charity  

1.1 The Lower Central Gardens, Bournemouth is a charitable trust established by an 

Indenture dated 12 August 1873 (the “Indenture”) and registered with the Charity 

Commission on 26 July 1988 with Charity Number 299739 (the "Charity") 

1.2 The object of the Charity is to maintain the public gardens known as "The Lower 

Central Gardens" in Bournemouth for the recreation and enjoyment of the public in 

accordance with the terms of the Charity Scheme made by the Charity Commission on 

the 13th May 2011, pursuant to Section 16 to the Charities Act 1993 and s.29 of the 

Bournemouth Borough Council Act 1985 (“the 2011 Charity Scheme” and “the 1985 

Act”). 

1.3 The Bournemouth Borough Council (the "Council") is the sole managing trustee of the 

Charity. 

1.4 The Cabinet of the Council resolved on 12th October 2011 pursuant to its powers under 

the 2011 Charity Scheme to make arrangements for the discharge of the Council's 

functions as managing trustee by the delegation of the management of the Charity to a 

sub-committee of the Cabinet to be established and known as the Trust Board (the 

"Trust Board"). 

2 Administration of the Charity 

Subject to the terms of the 2011 Charity Scheme and the 1985 Act, the Charity and its 

property shall be administered and managed in accordance with these Rules by the 

members of the Trust Board ( the "Trust Board Members"), as constituted by 

paragraph 3 of these Rules. 

 

Page 21



2 
WORK\4179753\v.5  30007.1 

 

3 The Trust Board – appointment and removal 

3.1 In addition to the three to four Trust Board Members co-opted in accordance with 

paragraph 4 of these Rules, the Trust Board shall include of not less than four nor more 

than five individuals, all of whom shall be elected members of the Council. 

3.2 Subject to paragraph 3.6 below, each of properly constituted political groups 

("Group") within the Council shall be entitled to appoint its member/s to be Trust 

Board  Member (and shall be entitled to remove any person so appointed by it). 

The number of Trust Board Members appointed by each Group shall be in accordance 

with the political balance of the Council at any time and in accordance with the 

Council's Constitution. 

3.3 A Trust Board Member appointed or removed pursuant to paragraph 3.2 shall be 

appointed or removed (as the case may be) automatically and immediately following 

receipt by the secretary to the Trust Board at the Council's offices at Town Hall, 

Bournemouth of a written notice executed by or on behalf of the relevant appointor. 

3.4 Subject to paragraph 3.2 above, a Trust Board Member who has held office without 

retirement for a period of three years shall retire automatically on the third anniversary 

of his appointment, but shall be eligible for re-appointment by his or her appointor for a 

further term of three years. 

3.5 A Trust Board Member who has served two three-year terms shall retire and shall not 

be capable of re-appointment to the Trust Board by any appointor under these Rules for 

a period of one year from such retirement.  

3.6 Any Group entitled to appoint a Trust Board Member pursuant to these Rules shall 

immediately remove or be deemed to have removed their appointee from office if the 

Trust Board shall resolve that:- 

(a) such removal is required to ensure that the composition of the Trust Board is maintained 

in accordance with the political balance of the Council pursuant to paragraph 3.2 above; 

or 

(b) such removal is required under paragraph 8.1(g) of these Rules, provided that nothing in 

this sub-paragraph (b) shall prevent the relevant appointor appointing a new Trust 

Board Member in accordance with these Rules. 

Page 22



3 
WORK\4179753\v.5  30007.1 

3.7 The right of a Group to appoint a Trust Board Member to the Board pursuant to 

paragraph 3.2 shall be lost automatically if the relevant appointor ceases to be a  

political group within the Council. 

3.8 In the absence of a Trust Board Member due to illness, holiday leave or unavailability 

for any other reason, the Group which appointed that Trust Board Member may for a 

maximum of three successive Trust Board meetings substitute a temporary alternate 

member who shall be entitled to take part in those Trust Board meetings and vote on 

Trust Board resolutions in place of the absent Trust Board Member. If after three 

successive Trust Board meetings the Trust Board Member concerned continues to be 

unavailable for any reason, the Group that appointed him or her may appoint a new 

Trust Board Member in his or her place (provided that this is subject to the right of the 

other Trust Board Members under paragraph 8.1(c) of these Rules to ask for the 

resignation of any Trust Board Member who is absent without notice from three 

consecutive meetings of the Trust Board). 

3.9 Each Trust Board Member shall be under an overriding duty to act in the best interests 

of the Charity and in accordance with the provisions of the 2011 Charity Scheme and 

the 1985 Act. 

3.10 The proceedings of the Trust Board shall not be invalidated by any vacancy among their 

number or by any failure to appoint or any defect in the appointment or qualification of 

a Trust Board Member. 

3.11 Nobody shall be appointed as a Trust Board Member who is aged under 18 or who 

would if appointed be disqualified under the provisions of paragraph 8 of these Rules. 

3.12 No person shall be entitled to act as a Trust Board Member whether on a first or on any 

subsequent entry into office until after signing in the minute book of the Trust Board a 

declaration of acceptance and of willingness to act to further the objects of the Charity. 

3.13 The tenure of office of elected Councillors as Trust Board Members shall not exceed 

that of their term of office as Council members. 

4 Co-opted Members of the Trust Board 

4.1 The Trust Board may in addition to the maximum number of five elected Trust Board 

Members appoint not less than three nor more than four co-opted Trust Board Members.  

Page 23



4 
WORK\4179753\v.5  30007.1 

4.2 Each appointment of a co-opted Trust Board Member shall be made at a meeting of the 

Council Cabinet acting as Trustee for the Charity and shall take effect from the end of 

that meeting unless the appointment is to fill a place which has not been vacated in 

which case the appointment shall run from the date when the post becomes vacant.  

4.3 Co-opted Trust Board Members shall not be members of the Council but shall be 

entitled to vote on resolutions of the Trust Board. 

5 Scope of delegation 

5.1 The Trust Board shall further the functions conferred on the Council as managing 

trustee of the Charity by the 2011 Charity Scheme and the 1985 Act in furtherance of 

the objects of the Charity but not otherwise. 

5.2 The Council Cabinet, acting as managing trustee of the Charity may: 

(a) reserve to meetings of the Cabinet; or 

(b) re-assume control of   

the management of and decisions relating to such matters relating to the Charity as it 

shall in its discretion so resolve. 

6 Delegation to sub-committees or officers of the Council 

6.1 The Trust Board may pursuant to the 2011 Charity Scheme arrange for the discharge of 

the functions of the Council relating to the Charity by delegating such of its powers of 

management and administration as the Trust Board may from time to time decide to a 

sub-committee of the Trust Board or to an officer of the Council or the Trust Board, and 

may make regulations for the conduct of such sub-committee or officer and from time 

to time amend such regulations.  All acts and proceedings of any such sub-committee or 

officer shall be reported as soon as possible to the Trust Board and no such committee 

or officer shall incur expenditure on behalf of the Charity except in accordance with a 

budget which has been approved by the Trust Board. 

7 Meetings of the Trust Board 

7.1 The Trust Board must hold at least two ordinary meetings each year.  One such meeting 

in each year must involve the physical presence of those Trust Board Members who 

attend the meeting.  Other meetings may be held in person or by such suitable electronic 

Page 24



5 
WORK\4179753\v.5  30007.1 

means, including video-conferencing, as the Trust Board decide provided that the form 

chosen enables the Trust Board Members both to see and to hear each other. 

7.2 The Trust Board must arrange at each of their meetings the date, time and place of their 

next meeting, unless such arrangements have already been made.  Ordinary meetings 

may also be called at any time by the person elected to chair meetings of the Trust 

Board or by any two Trust Board Members.  In that case not less than ten days' clear 

notice must be given to the other Trust Board Members. 

7.3 A special meeting may be called at any time by the person elected to chair meetings of 

the Trust Board or by any three Trust Board Members.  Not less than four working days' 

clear notice must be given to the other Trust Board Members of the matters to be 

discussed at the meeting.  A special meeting may be called to take place immediately 

after or before an ordinary meeting. 

7.4 The Trust Board at their first ordinary meeting in each year must elect one of their 

number to chair their meetings.  The person elected shall always be eligible for re-

election.  If that person is not present within ten minutes after the time appointed for 

holding a meeting, or if no one has been elected, or if the person elected has ceased to 

be a Trust Board Member, the Trust Board Members present must choose one of their 

number to chair the meeting. 

7.5 The person elected to chair meetings of the Trust Board shall have no other additional 

functions or powers except those conferred by these Rules or delegated to him or her by 

the Trust Board. 

7.6 No business shall be conducted at a meeting of the Trust Board unless at least one third 

of the total number of Trust Board Members at the time, or three Trust Board Members 

(whichever is the greater) are present throughout the meeting. 

7.7 At meetings, decisions must be made by a majority of the Trust Board present and 

voting on the question.  The person chairing the meeting shall have a casting vote 

whether or not he or she has voted previously on the same question but no Trust Board 

Member in any other circumstances shall have more than one vote. 

7.8 There will be Charity business where conflicts between the interests of the Charity, the 

Council acting as local authority for Bournemouth and the individual member/s of the 

Trust Board may arise.  This Charity business will have to be managed in accordance 

with the Charity’s Conflict of Interest Policy. 

Page 25



6 
WORK\4179753\v.5  30007.1 

8 Termination of membership of Trust Board 

8.1 A Trust Board Member shall cease to hold office if he or she:- 

(a) would be disqualified under the Charities Act 1993 from acting as a charity trustee or 

trustee for a charity; 

(b) is incapable, whether mentally or physically, of managing his/her own affairs; 

(c) is absent without notice from three consecutive meetings of the Trust Board and is 

asked by a majority of the other Trust Board Members to resign; 

(d) resigns by written notice to the Trust Board (but only if at least two Trust Board 

Members will remain in office); 

(e) in the case of elected Council Members ceases to be member of the Council; 

(f) in the case of elected Council Members ceases to be a member of the Group which 

appointed him or her; 

(g) is removed by a resolution passed by all the other Trust Board Members after they have 

invited the views of the Trust Board Member concerned and considered the matter in 

the light of any such views. 

9 Trust Board members not to be personally interested 

9.1 No Trust Board Member shall acquire any interest in property belonging to the Charity 

or receive remuneration or be interested (otherwise than as a Trust Board Member) in 

any contract entered into by the Trust Board. 

9.2 If a Trust Board Member has a personal interest in a matter to be discussed at a meeting 

of the Trust Board or any of its sub-committee, the Trust Board Member concerned 

must: 

(a) declare an interest before the meeting or at the meeting before discussion on the matter 

begins; 

(b) be absent from the meeting for that item unless expressly invited to remain in order to 

provide information; 

(c) not be counted in the quorum during that part of the meeting; 

(d) be absent during the vote and have no vote on the matter. 

Page 26



7 
WORK\4179753\v.5  30007.1 

10 Custodians and nominees 

10.1 All or any part of the property of the Charity may be held in the name of any 

corporation or any other person (being, if individuals, at least two in number (whether 

or not including one or more of the Trust Board)) as nominee for the Charity on such 

terms as the Council as the managing trustee of the Charity thinks fit. 

10.2 The Council, acting as Trustee, shall have power to appoint as custodian trustee any 

corporation empowered so to act, upon such terms as they shall think fit, and may 

transfer the whole or any part of the property of the Charity to or so as to be under the 

control of such custodian trustee, provided that the remuneration payable to such 

corporation shall in no case exceed what is approved by a resolution of the Council 

acting as Trustee. 

10.3 In exercising the powers conferred by sub-paragraphs 10.1 and 10.2 the Council, acting 

as Trustee, shall comply with any guidance published by the Charity Commission from 

time to time. 

11 Bank accounts 

11.1 The Trust Board may open and maintain in the name of the Charity, or in such other 

name as the Trust Board may think fit, bank accounts at such banks as the Trust Board 

may from time to time decide, and at any time may pay any money forming part of the 

property of the Charity or its income to the credit of any such account or place the same 

on deposit with any bank. 

11.2 Subject to sub-paragraph 13.3, the Trust Board may from time to time make such 

arrangements as they shall think fit for the operation of any bank account in the name of 

the Charity or under the control of the Trust Board; and all the funds and income of the 

Charity shall be paid into the bank account.   

11.3 All cheques and orders for payment of money from any bank account in the name of 

the Charity or under the control of the Trust Board shall be signed by at least two Trust 

Board Members, subject to any regulations made by the Trust Board. 

 

 

 

Page 27



8 
WORK\4179753\v.5  30007.1 

12 Accounts  

12.1 The Trust Board must comply with the requirements of the Charities Act 1993 as to the 

keeping of the financial records of the Charity, the audit or independent examination of 

its accounts and the preparation and transmission to the Charity Commission of the 

Charity's annual returns, reports and statements of account. 

13 Records 

13.1 The Trust Board must maintain proper records of: 

(a) all proceedings at meetings of the Trust Board; 

(b) all reports of sub-committees of the Trust Board; and 

(c) all professional advice obtained. 

14 Notices 

Any notice required to be served on any Trust Board Member shall be in writing and 

shall be served by the secretary of the Trust Board on any Trust Board Member either 

personally or by sending it by first class post in a pre-paid letter addressed to such 

member at his or her last known address in the United Kingdom, and any letter so sent 

shall be deemed to have been received within 5 working days of posting. 

15 Power of amendment and revocation 

The Council shall have the power to amend or revoke these Rules. 

16 Adoption of these Rules 

These Rules were adopted on the date mentioned below on behalf of the Council acting 

as Trustee and in accordance with a resolution of the Cabinet acting as Trustee dated 

12th October 2011 by the persons whose signatures appear at the bottom of this 

document. 

 Date ………………………….2011 

Signed……………………………………………………………………………………. 

……………………………………………………………………………………………. 

……………………………………………………………………………………………. 

Page 28



APPENDIX 3 

 

BOURNEMOUTH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

LOWER CENTRAL GARDENS TRUST BOARD 

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST POLICY 
 

 

  

1.  Aims and objectives 

  

1.1  This Policy applies to all members of the Lower Central Gardens Trust Board, 

whether or not they are elected Councillors or co-optees. 

1.2 The aim of this Policy is to assist the Trust Board to act with integrity and 

openness, with a view to identifying situations where their duties to the Lower 
Central Gardens Trust might be in conflict with their duties to Council, the 

Cabinet or other bodies.  For the avoidance of doubt, this Policy not only covers 
conflicts which would arise in situations where the interests of elected 
Councillors on the Trust Board clash with their Council duties but also other 

potential conflicts of interest, which may affect co-optees on the Board.  

1.3 This Policy is intended to assist the Trust Board in identifying conflicts, to avoid 
conflicts arising at all and where conflicts do arise, this Policy is intended to 
assist the Trust Board to manage those conflicts in order to avoid perceived and 

actual problems occurring.  

1.4 This Policy takes account of relevant guidance provided by the Charity 

Commission and paragraphs 5.30 and 5.31 of the First - Tier Tribunal’s (Charity) 

decision dated 16 November 2009 [Case No. CA/2009/0001 & 0002].  

1.5 This Policy supplements the guidance and advice set out in the Council’s ethical 
governance framework and Constitution.  

2.  Responsibilities  

 
2.1 Members of the Trust Board may be Cabinet members, elected Councillors or 

independent co-optees.   They may owe duties to Council, the Cabinet, or other 

bodies.  

2.2 The guiding principle for Trust Board members is that their primary duty is to act 
in the best interests of the Charity and those who are beneficiaries of the Charity, 
when they make and implement decisions. That duty takes priority over any duty 

that might be owed to Council, the Cabinet or other bodies.  

2.3 Trust Board members must exercise reasonable care in the manner in which 

they make decisions.  Members must make decisions independently of any 
influence from Council, the Cabinet or other bodies.  Members must ensure that 

Page 29



 2 

decisions are made to further the purpose of the Charity and those who are 
beneficiaries of the Charity and not to further other purposes.  

 

2.4 Trust Board members are not charity trustees. This does not mean that they do 
not owe duties to the Charity. As delegatee of the Council acting as Trustee, 

Trust Board members whilst not themselves being trustees, will nevertheless 
have to comply with all the laws, rules and regulations applicable to Trustees 
when they exercise the Trustee powers under delegation.   

2.5 This Policy includes illustrative examples to assist Trust Board members in 
determining the types of interests which need to be declared.  However, it is the 

personal responsibility of each individual Trust Board member (under guidance 
of the Monitoring Officer if necessary), to determine whether they feel a matter 
represents a potential or actual conflict of interest or the perception of such a 

conflict and should therefore be declared.  

3.  Identifying conflicts  

 
3.1  Trust Board members must be alert to the possibility that conflicts of interest may 

arise.  When they carry out the business of the Trust Board, Trust Board 

members must avoid conflicts of interest as far as possible.  

The Charity Commission’s guidance notes that ‘the issue is not the integrity of 
the trustee concerned, but the management of any potential to profit from a 

person’s position as trustee, or for a trustee to be influenced by conflicting 
loyalties.   Even the appearance of a conflict of interest can damage the 

Charity’s reputation, so conflicts need to be managed carefully’.  

3.2  A conflict of interest arises in any situation where duties are owed by Trust Board 

members to a body other than the Charity, if those duties clash with the duties 
owed to the Charity.  For example, an elected councillor may have a duty to act 
in the best interests of Council and/or the Cabinet, while at the same time having 

a duty to act in the best interests of the Charity.   If it is not possible to do both at 

the same time, there is a conflict of interest.  

3.3  Where specific decisions have to be made, a decision might be advantageous to 
Council, the Cabinet or to another body, but may not be the best decision to 

make for the Charity.   In that situation, there may be a conflict of interest specific 

to that decision.  

3.4  Where a Trust Board member has already participated in the business of 
Council, the Cabinet or some other body that is likely to affect the Charity, that 

member is likely to have a conflict of interest, if that business has subsequently 

to be considered by the Trust Board.  

 

3.5  Relevant interests may be financial or non-financial; direct or indirect.   Direct 

financial benefits or interests include for example employment by the Charity of a 
Trust Board member as a consultant or advisor, or a company of which a Trust 
Board member is a director or shareholder may be considered for a contract by 

the Charity.  Other matters of financial interest include the sale of land or the use 
of a Trust Board member’s property by the Charity, or granting of loans by a Page 30



 3 

Trust Board member to the Charity.  Such financial benefits require 
authorisation, usually by the Charity Commission.  

3.6  Indirect financial interests may arise where potential financial benefits accrue to 

a close member of a Trust Board member’s family, or even a friend, business 
partner or colleague, where their finances are interdependent (e.g. joint bank 

accounts, mortgages or property held in joint names, one party financially 
dependent on the other, employer/employee/contractual relationship) or where it 
could otherwise be perceived that such benefits could lead to a conflict of 

interest, i.e. by influencing the Trust Board member’s decision other than in the 
best interest of the Charity.  

3.7  Non financial interests, direct or indirect, may arise where a Trust Board member 
is also a user of the Charity’s services, particularly if the Trust Board member is 
benefiting from those services in a manner which is exceptional.  

3.8  Conflict of loyalty interests may arise where an association of a Trust Board 
member or of a relative or friend with another body or organisation etc. may be 

perceived as influencing the member in making decisions which may not be in 
the best interest of the Charity.  

3.9 If a Trust Board member is unsure whether they are or might find themselves in 

a position of conflict, that member must err on the side of caution by making the 
situation known to the Trust Board as a whole and, if necessary, seek the advice 

of the Monitoring Officer.  

4. Avoiding conflicts 

 
4.1 In conducting Council or Cabinet business or the business of some other body, 

Trust Board members must consider whether participating in that business might 
prevent them from participating in any aspect of the business of the Trust Board.   

4.2 If it is likely that by participating in the business of Council, the Cabinet or 
another body, a conflict of interest might arise in future with the business of the 
Trust Board, a member of the Trust Board should not participate in the business 

of Council, the Cabinet or other body.  Instead, Trust Board members should 
give priority to the business of the Trust Board.  

 
 

Example: the maintenance of the Council’s corporate park land is one of 

Cabinet’s responsibilities.  Cabinet members who sit on the Trust Board will 
absent themselves from Trust Board meetings when the apportionment of 

maintenance expenses between the Charity and the Council in its corporate 
capacity is discussed and voted on. Similarly, Trust Board members who are 
also members of the Planning Board, will withdraw from Trust Board business 

when a planning issue arises which affects the Charity.  

 
4.3 Trust Board members must also have regard to the Member Code of Conduct. 

The Code affects whether Trust Board members can participate in the business 

of Council and/or the Cabinet when there is already a conflict of interest with the 

Charity. Page 31



 4 

5.  Managing conflicts  

 

5.1  Elected Councillors and co-opted members are required by law to register their 

interests within 28 days of their election or appointment.  The Register is a 
document which can be consulted when (or before) an issue arises and lets 
others consider whether or not a Trust Board member may have a conflict of 

interest.  

 
5.2  Where a conflict of interest or a potential conflict of interest is identified, it must 

be recorded in the minutes of the Trust Board and the Trust Board’s Register of 
Interests and reported to the Council in accordance with the Council’s 

constitutional arrangements.  Keeping a record of the business of Council, the 
Cabinet and other bodies that are likely to affect the business of the Trust Board 

will help members to recognise when they should not participate in decisions.  

 

5.3  If a conflict of interest has arisen, the Trust Board member concerned must not 
participate in the discussions or decisions of the Trust Board that are affected by 

that conflict. That member should not influence the views of any other Trust 
Board member.  If the member is able to contribute to the discussion and/or 

provide information that might be relevant to the discussion or the decision, the 
Trust Board may, on a simple majority vote, recorded in the minutes, ask the 
member to contribute to the discussion and/or provide the information.  The 

member should not contribute to the discussion and/or provide the information 

without the prior agreement of the Trust Board. 

  

5.4  Where a general duty to Council, the Cabinet or another body conflicts with a 
duty to the Charity, the member concerned should have regard only to the duty 
owed to the Charity.  The member concerned should have no regard to the duty 

owed to Council, the Cabinet or that other body. 

  
5.5  Where there is a likelihood of a conflict or where a conflict has been identified, 

the Trust Board should consider whether any other Trust Board members might 
be in positions of conflict.  The Trust Board should give consideration to the 

possibility that only co-opted members will be able to vote on a specific matter. 
In situations where all elected Councillors on the Trust Board are conflicted, the 

quorum is three (3) co-opted members.   

 
6.   Seeking advice  

 
6.1 The Trust Board should bear in mind that in any case of doubt, advice is 

available from the Monitoring Officer and that it is preferable to seek advice at an 
early stage, before any decision is made.  

 

7.  Recruitment of co-optees  

 
7.1  Applicants must on the first appointment not within the period of five years, have 

been a councillor, co-opted member or employee of Bournemouth Borough 
Council or be a relative or close friend of an elected councillor, employee or co-

opted member of the Council.   

7.2  Applicants must demonstrate a commitment to good governance and sound 
financial management and act solely in the best interests of the Charity and work Page 32



 5 

with and alongside elected Councillors in managing the Charity, for the people of 
Bournemouth.  

7.3  Unless a co-optee resigns or becomes disqualified in accordance with the Rules 

of the Lower Central Gardens Trust, each term of office for co-optees appointed 
to the Lower Central Gardens Trust Board will not exceed a period of 3 years.  

After up to two three-year terms Co-optees will retire and will not be eligible for 
re-appointment to the Trust Board for a period of one year from such retirement. 
Thus the total possible consecutive period of term of office for co-optees will be 6 

years.   

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

General 2011 : Conflicts of Interest Policy 
28 June, 2011 
 

 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 34



Scale:                  True@A3P 

Date:      20/04/2022 

Creator:  Property and Estates

© Crown Copyright and Database Right 2022 – Ordnance Survey 100019829

INDICATIVE ONLY

KPI 2942

LCGTB Land

Meyrick Freehold subject to a lease to the Council

Trust Land Ownership

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 36



 

 

Appendix 5 

BCP Council 2022/23 confirmed events linked to Lower Central Gardens 

 

 

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 38



Lower Central Gardens Trust Board Work Programme 

 

Meeting Date 
 

Items of Business Lead Officer(s) 

29 April 2022  Summary of accounts March 2020 - March 2022 

 Lower Central Gardens Trust - Update Report 

 

 Trust Work Programme 

Stephen White 

Kate Langdown, Ian Poultney, Andy McDonald & 
Tom Powell 

Nicky Hooley 

TBC June 2022  Trust Work Programme Nicky Hooley 

TBC December 22/ 
January 23 

 Annual Accounts sign-off  Stephen White 

 P
age 39

A
genda Item

 6



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 40


	Agenda
	3 Confirmation of Minutes
	Minutes , 12/01/2022 Lower Central Gardens Trust Board

	4 Summary of accounts March 2020 - March 2022
	Appendix 1 for Summary of accounts March 2020 - March 2022

	5 Lower Central Gardens Trust - Update Report
	Appendix 1 1. Lower Central Gardens Trust Scheme Governance
	Appendix 2 2. Rules of the Trust
	Appendix 3 3. Conflicts of Interest Policy
	Appendix 4 Map LCGT land
	Appendix 5  Planned Events List

	6 Work Programme

